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JLMRICH
IN THE COURT OF APPELL -
SUPPEME COURT CiIVIL 7PPEAL NO. 38/90
COR: THE HON. MR. JUSTICE CLREY -~ PRESIDENT (£G.) )
THE HCI., ME. JUSTICE WRICHT, J.4. :
THE HON. MR, JUSTICE GORDON, J.... (i:5.)
i
BETWEEN TELECDMMUNIC[‘.TIONS OF JiMnaICh 13TH DEFENDANT/ §
LIMITED OPPELLINT '
LMD HECTOR BERNARD '
S50NIA MILLS
MLRTIN MORDECLI
; WELLESLEY PCWELL .
ANNE SL.UNDERS
GOKDON WELLS PLZ":INTIFFS/ c
RICHARD WELLS KESPONDENTS P
(in their personal capaciiy as i
well as on behalf of themselves
B and all other shareholders of
~ Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited excepi the First and . o
Second Defendant) P
THE LTTORNEY GENERAL (for the
Accountagt General, a 1ST DEFENDANT :
corporation sole pursuant to RESPONDENT |
the Crewn Property Vesting hct) = '
CHBLE & WIRELESS (W.I.) LTh 2ND DEFENDLNT/ P
‘ RESPONDENT S
¥ -
HORLCE BARBEL 38D DEFENDANT/ : )
RESPCNDENT
DGUGLAS C. BUCK 4'TH DEFENDLET/
RESPONDENT |
T e WENTWORTH CHAKLES 5TH DEFENDANT/
RESPONDENT oo
ol TOM CHELLEW 6TH DEFENDANT/
[ T SN RESPONDENT
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(A ' J/ i :
fon b R A
AT LLSTOK DOUGLAS 7TH DEFENDANT/
PRI KESPONDENT -
or) {7
) DAVID HAIS 8TH DEFENDART/
RESPONDENT
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FRED PHILLIPS 9TH DEFENDALNT/
‘ KESPONDELT
HOSFOKD SCOTT 10TH DEFENDLNT/
RESPONDERT
PRUL SKEY 117H DEFERDANT/
KESPONDENRT
MAYER MATHLON 12TH DEFENDLNT/
RESPONDENT

PELLECOMMUNICATIONS
OF JiMLEICH LIMITED 13TH DEFENDALNT/
KESPONDENT

J. Leo-Rhynie;, 0.C. and iillan Wood inst:ucted by Livingston,
iilezander & Levy fer 13th 7ppellant

]

n. B. Manderson-Jones for Plaintiffs/ilespondents

Douglas Leys and Miss D. Gallimore instructed by Director of
State Proceedings fo:r Ist Defendant /Kespondent

Emil Geoxge, Q.C. and Richard I.shenheim instiucted
L
JC

Milholland. [shonheim & Stone for ind, 4ih,. Cth,
Defend:nts/icspondents

by
h ané 1lith

Mrs. Angella Hudson-Phillips 0.C. and Steve Shelton instructed
Dy Myers, Fletcher & Gordon ete. for Sth. 7th and 1Uth
Defendants,/i.espendencs

David Muirhcad Q.C. and Peter Soldson instructed by L. Levy of
Hyers, Fletchor & Gorden etc. for 1241t Cefendant/wespendent

Miss Karen Robertson for Lth Lefendnt/lwespondent

«x«ction agains® the 3rd befendant/kespondent was withdrawn

28th, 29th, 30th, 21st January,;
lst, 4th February & May 2¢. 1991

CLREY, P. {(iG.}):

It is ecssentinl in A case of this unusual noture, the
F 3 e 3 4- L RE T T T M, D K HPUR 3 Foowge re 1
first of its kind I undersitand in this Jurisdiction, aund in
vhich, especcinlly becausc men's reputnations are ot ostake, that

every affcri should be made to give our reasons carly. - We

thought it right %¢ give our decisicn @@ the end of the submissicns

which occupicd sixz working days. 50 Lhot no one would be kept in




SuSpense as Lo our Gecision.  Sadly our hepes have not beun

realized.  ie

The pleintiffs/respondents suocd Teloecommunications of

cfegret the delay in Progucing ouy roasons.

Jumaica Limited (TOJ) (the 13+ defendont! and some ¢leven

other dofendanis ncluding Cable and Wirscles

it

e

i

Limited the Governnent 2f Jamaicz {actuaily the accountant

venextl) nd olher persons biing directers of T.0.J.

rmu

2

or -

[ s

"v.ov. fraud; misrepresentotion and

Oi negligence arising in selation

L0 the issuing by the Defendants in
or cbout September, 1858 of A
prospecius for the sale of certain
snares in Yelecowmunicnsicns of
Jameica Limiced and alzo in

relation to the purchasce in 1998 by
that company of certain prepervices,
The Plaintiffs ulso claim Gamages

on the ground that in addition to
being fraudulent the purchase of

the said preperties was ulcra vires
the Memorandum of [.ssocial.on of
Telecommunications of Jamalica Linited
The first Lefendant is sued under the
Crown Proceedings iici on belialf of
the Accountant-Genercl. o Lurporatbicn
Sole puisucnt to the Crown Froperty
(Vesting) ..ct, which is and wos ac
all material times a mej0r share-
holuer in Telecommunications of
vomaica Limicved and was the owner of
the shares in theot company which were
cffered for sale to the public in

the said prospectus. ”

‘e above oexuract roecites tho enuorsement on the

Pleintiffs® ancended writ. e amended stacement of claim

centeined sore twentye-iour paragraphs and somi ¢f these will

th

|...l.

be dealt w
discontinued,;

Horace 3arbey

The thirteenth defendant 7.0.J. applied Lo the Court

for -

at a later stage in this judgment. ir.ction was

we undersiand; aqgainst the thicg defendant

-

“(1)  Ln Ordes determining os
Preliminary issue in this
action the quesiicn whethes
the Plaintiffs =ve cniitlod
to naintain in this sui!l a
derivaetive action for the
benefit of the Thirteenih
Defendant.

esc Indies)
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{ii) thernat'vely; liberty to
file & Lefence to thie

Thirteenth

necessary.’

Defendant if
1

The matter was heard before Edwerds J. by wvhose order, dated

9th Uctoker, 3950 it wos declared that the plaintiffs were

entitled to mrinvain a derivative action on behalf of the

thirteenth defendant .,

hiave been furnished, it isg clear thel he allowed

action to procesd cn the basig
as saying -

L1}

From his judguent, o ncte of which we

the derivetr.ve

of fraud only. He is recorded

<. ihe guestion of firauc not; .

ultra vices shculd Le deals

with pProperly at

“he thirteenih defcndant being dissatisfied yiih

and order. now a2ppeals to this
Judge's order be set aside and
not be allowed to pProceed.
“his case is concerned
shareholder sue?
The matter is governeag

tule in Foss v. Harbottle 11043

Jenkins: L.J. in Edwards v. Halliwell {1645

a trial.®
thot judgment
Court for zn order that the

the plaintiffs' derivative action

with the question - when can a ’

by a rule ccommonly known as the

2 Hare &¢1. ¢7 B.x. 189,

7

[V,

I 2 41) E.k, losa

At page 1058 stated the rule in

this woy -

‘The rule in Foss v. Harbottle,

2s I understang
Incre Lhan this.

it, comes 16 no
Ficse the

proper plaintiff in an action

in respech of a

viong clieged to

be done to a company or associaiion
. of perscns is, prama focie, the
company or the assccliation or

persons itselif.

secondly, where

the alleged wWionyg is o tiansaccion
which mighi be made Linding on
the company ox association and on

all its nembers
majority of the

by o simple
members no

individual nembeyr of the company
is allowed to maint:in an zction
in respect of that matier for the
sinple reason that, if 2 mere




P

"majority of the members of the
company or association is in
favour of what has bcen aonrs:,
then cadit guaestio. No wIong
has been done Lo the company
or association and therce is
nothing in respect of thich anyone
can sue. II; cn the other hand,
& simple majority of members of
the company oxr association is
against wiat has been done, then
there is no valid reascn vhy Lhe
ccnpeny or associaticon itself
shotld not sue. In ny judgment
it is implicit in the rule tha:
the matter relied on as
constituting the cause of actlion
shell be a cause of action properly

. belonging to the gcneral bedy cof
Coiporaters or menmbors of the
company oy assccialion as opposed
to 2 causce of action which somnc
individual member con asseri in

liis own right.'"

Broadly speaking therafore, the company is ithe prcper plaintiff
in an acition involving a dispute wiihin the company. & the

- body usually charged with the management of a company, it is
the board of directors who must initiate action. Bul
cizcumst:ances might exist which might not incline the directors
to act in the company‘s name. 7%herce are four seus of
circumstancses which are often referred to 2s the exzceptions

from the rule in Foss v. Harbottle {(supra). I would state them

as follows:

(1) When the sharcholder (being the
minority complain that the
company is aciting ultra vires
cr illegally;

{11) wiiere the shareholder (being the
minority) seek te have a
resolution of the company in
general meeting declared void on
the ground that it Lhas not Leen
validly passed e.g. tha: the
resolution was cone which could
only be passed by a special
resolution;

(iii) where the: wrong done to the
company. also infringes the
pexsonual rights of the share-
heldesr and if the wrong to the
shaieholder could noi Le reciified
LY an cordinary resoluifion of the
ccmpany




-

-y -

(iv) where what has been dcnz
~  amounts to a fraud on the
minority and the fraudsters
are themselves in control
of the company.'

The effech: of these excepflons ¢s ‘that a shareholder will be
allowed to sue Lf what ne complalns of, could not ke validly
effected or rat¢f1ed by an ordlnary resoluiion.

The actlon Jhlch the shareholder brings in his own

behalf and on bcnalx of othelwsha ‘eholders, is not really on
his or their belhalf but on behdlf of the company. The

shareholéer is acting as a representative of the company. This

action is referred to as a derivative action in recognitiofd of
=4 AR
the fact that the shareholder’ i's suing on behalf of the

company to enforce rights derived from it. The forms of pleacing

require the minority shareholde¥s to aver the formula -
1]

««-.. On behalf of themselves®and all other shareholders of

P-4
sy

s+s.." buit that does'not in dny'way alter the character of the
action. In so far as 1he prefent plaintiffs sued in their
personal capa01t1es, the gllegatlons pleaded constitute the
personal actlon. It is rlght to pownt ocut fhat both the
derivative andg Lhe personal actlonsxnere married in this SUlt

s

Eut this course is pelm1531ble where the claims arise out of the

J\,

same transaction. Prudentlal Assurance Co. Ltd v. hewman

industries Ltd & Ors.: Ttie—2+ (19803 2 n11 E.R. 841.

M., Leo“uhynle submlLted and this was conceded by

Mr. Manderson-lones, thaL Lhe bas;s of fraud pleadea in the

derivative action was contained in paragraphs 17 to 24 of the

amended statement of claim. These are guoted hereunder -

1723
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in or about the menth of

Octobeyr, 1928 the First

Defendant, the Second Defendant,
the Director Defencdants and

the Twelfth Defendan: caused
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Linited to purchase from the
said Development Properties
Limited the said land comprised
in Certificaztes of Titles
registered at Volume 118C Folio
33¢ and Volume 1065 Folio 225 of
the Register Rook of Titles
amounting to some 15 acres with
buildings thereon at a price of
approximately FORTY-NTNE MILLION
CWE HUWDRED AKND EXGHTY-NINE
THOUSARD T%O HUKDRED DOLLARS
($49,189,200.50).

The saig price:of $49,189,200.G0
paid for the lanéd was grossly in
excess of professional valuations
of its true market value.

The First and Second Defendants,

the Director Defendanis and the
Twelfth Defendant all fully well knew
that - the 1lang was not wor:th or
valued at the price paid for it or
did not honestly believe that it was
Or acted in reckless disregard of
whether it was or was not and
conspired together to have the
company purchase the saicd land at a
grossly inflated price as a
consequence whereof Telecommunicationsg
of Jamaica Limited has sufferead
considerable loss and damage.

PARTICULARS

Cifference between
contract price and

market price S = $335,00G,00L-30
_ . (Estimated)
Purchaser's cosl of :
transfer , : 3:0060,000.00
(Estinated)

Purchasers Attorneys
fees : 1,C0G66,C0606.00C

(Estimated)
$34,0060,000.G0
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"20. The purchase of the properties
and at the price aforesaid is
! . ultra vires"the objects of the
Memorandum of Association of
Telecommunications of Jamaica
i_ Linited particularly insofar as
| it is expressly declared thersin
that the company shall carry on
its business in accordance with
commercial principles which were
rmanifestly absent in the said
puichase and also insofar as
the properties were not necessary
for, cannot be convenienitliy used
with and cannot enhance the
value of any other property of
the company.

2l. The aforesaid conduct of the First
and Second Defendants, of the
§ Director Defendants and the

Twelfth Defendant completely dis-
regarded the interest of

~Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited and of the Plaintiffs and
constituted oppressive and '

e unconscxonable coxduct towaxrds them.

22. Furiher and/or in the alternative
- the said loss and damage arising
: - from the purchase of the properties
- at a grossly inflated price was
caused 'by the negligence of the
Defendant Directors and of the- -
Twelfth Defendant.

PARTICULARS

(i) -~ Falllng to pay a reasonable
- price or to forego the
purchase and look for more
reasonably priced land:; *

{ii) Failing to obtain any or
an adequate number of
- A professional valuations of
the properties;

{iii} Alternatively, disregarding
" or failing to rely on or on
the majority of the
professional valuations
obtaineg;

{iv) Relying on their own uninformed
valuations of the properties
or on their own assumpbions
as to the proper prlce to be
pald for ic.
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Edwards J

~to determine, as a preliminaryiissue, whether the plaintiff was
y -

entitled +

Y
"25. The First and Second Defendants
by their absolute control over
‘the votes ofiTelecommunications
of Jamaica Limited and through
‘the Defendant Directors and the
Twelfth Defendant who are appeointed
‘by them completely overwhelm the
~Plaintiffs and have refused and/
or threaten-to refuse to pursue -
-this action“against themselves
~and their Directors ;n that’
_company's’ name.

in the‘premlses the Defendants are
~jeintly and severally liable to
the Plalntlffs. ‘

was required’at” the hearlng of the summons before him

o maintain'the~aerivative action against the defendants.

f
& Ors.(Nﬂ'Q

In Prudential Assurance Co. Ltd. V. Newman Industries Ltd.

{19221

Court of Appeal (Civil DlVlSlon)‘sanchlons

1 All E.R. 354 a* p. 36b the followmng statembnu by the

ChlS proceduxe -
In ‘our view, whatever may be

the properly cefined boundarics of the
exXception to the rule, the plaintiff
ought at least to be *equired befcre

proceed$ng with his action to establish

a prima facie case (i) thav the ~ - 7

conpany is entitled to the relief

claimed and (ii) that the action falls . - =i
within the proper bouncdaries of the

L1
T EEEEE

exception ¢o the ‘rule in

¢

Foss v. Harbottle.

The Pprocedure for the oe;ermlnaLlon of Lhib p;ellmlnary

N

is not expressly governed bj any p;ov¢51on in the C1v11

- ) Code but secticn 323‘the eof nay be pcayed in ald,.

follows

iIf it appear to the Cour:
Judge, *that there is.
cr matter a guesiion of law, which

it would beé‘convenient to have RS
decided before any evidence is

given or 'any question or issue of-

fact is tried, or before any
referenceis made to an arbitrator,

the Court or Judge may make an

‘order accordingly. and may &irect

such g 1uest‘on of law to be raised

for the opinion of the Court,

either by special case; or in such
other manner as the Court oxr Judge

may deem expedient, ané all such

"323. or a

I

Proced

issue

ure

1t states as

1k

in any cause -~ ~=p
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“further Proceedings as the decision
of such question of law may render
unnecessary may thereupon be stayed.”

. The current practice in the United Kingdom is governed by

0.15/12/5% which reads - .

"Where plaintiffs sue as representative
Plaintiffs in a minority shareholders
or -derivative acticn, the couri ought-
to determine, as a preliminary issue.
whether they are entitled so to sue
and whether the company was in factc
under che control of those alleged to
have practised a fraud on it before
the court proceeded tc hear the main

~derivative action itself,"

- Seeing that the Civil- Procedure Code does not contain this
provision, section 636.of! the/'Code may properly be invoked:

“665. Where no other provision is
- -+ expressly made by Law or by
-~ Rules 'of Court the procedure
‘and - practice for the time being
» of the“Supreme Court of
cJudicature in England shall, so
far asrapplicable, be followed,
, UEE

*.% 8 2 9 manae

Edwardst;;was_not-unaware-of his obligations: relevant

authorities were cited to him. On any fair reading of his
judgment, he ruled that the derivative action was maintainable

because fraud had been cstablished. He rejected any basis of

ultra vires acts on the part cf the defendants or any of them.

i

- - . N X R T i {*.
As to this, he expressed himself thus -

"I spent some time agonizing and
found first that the puirchase of

© the landlwas net ultra vires. "

There has béeﬁ ﬁo appeai bj tﬂé plaintiffsAagainét this finding
against them-aﬁa ihéfgfbré, i;heéd.say'nq more about that aspect
of the case exéeét th;t;tﬂe jdﬁge came to the right conclusion.
He did not exéresslf!éeal wiﬁglnegligence and he did not appear
to allow the actiqq to‘prbc;éé on that ground. I think this
Court is in.thé:éame pdgifioniés he was to determine whether a

Prima facie case exisis on. this ground. Therefore, to return that

a
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issue Lo the judge_forlgdjcg;cgyicp would be wasteful of
judicial time, would }e?@!tci?hpreasedxccstsi and would only
produce an unnecessary mulgipliéity'cf hearings.
Negligencemay‘beﬂa:caciszfor maintaining a derivative v
action, but nci every act'g;‘ﬁcél;gcnce'will justify such an

action by minority shareholders. In Alexander v. Automatic
S T T T -

Telephone Co. {196¢] 2 Ch. 56 Lindley M.R. at pages 6o, 67

made this point -~
" The Court of Chancely hnS always
exacted from directors the
observance of good faith towards
their shareholders‘cnd towards.
those ‘who' take shares from the. _ .
company and become co-adventurers
with themselves and others who
may - 401n ther. - The maxim ‘Caveat
emptor® has no application to
such cases, and’ dlrectors who s0
use their powers-as to obtain =
benefits for: themselves at ‘the
expense of the’ sharcholders,
without 1nforﬂ1ng them of the fact,
cannot retain those bhenefits and
must account for them to the
- company, ‘so “that ‘all the share-
holders may par 1c1pate in them. “

The case of Danlels v, Danlels Il978] 2 All E.R. 89 is relevant

although the facts 1nvolvc a salc at an undelvalue. in the

instant case the pleadlngs alleged purchase ut an overvalue. The
facts from the case are contained in ‘this extract from the head-
note -
“The plalntlffs were minority share-~
-+ holders in the ‘third defendant
('the cempany'). The first and
second defendants were majority
sharehclders and dixectors of the
company. - In October 1970 the
company sold cercain land to the
sccond defendant for £4,25C on the
instructions of theé first and second
defendants as directors. in 1574
the land was sold by the second
defendant for £120,00C., The
plaintiffs brought-an acticn against
the defendants’ allegxns that the
price‘at which the"land had been sold
to the second defendant wzs well below

its market value and that the first
and seeond defendante brnaw thatr t+hat
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Templeman
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v"was so, but had purported to adopt the
probate value of the land although a
probate value was usually much less
than the open market value. The
defendants applied to stuike out the
statement of claim as disclesing no
reasonable cause -of action since it
did not allege fraud or any other
ground that would justify an action
by minority shareholders against the
majority for damage caused to the
company."

3. made the following commen: at page 95 -

"TPhe authcrities which deal with
simple fraud on the one hand ‘and
gross negligence on the cther do
not cover the situation which
arises where, without fraud, the
directors and majority shareholders
are guilty of a breach of duty which
they owe to the company, and that
breach of duty not only harms the
company but benefits the directors.
In that case it seems to me that
different considerations apply. 1If
minority shareholders can sue if
there is fraud, I see no reason why
they cannot sue where the action of
the majority and the directors;
though without fraud, confers some
benefit on those directors and
majority shareholders themselves.
it would seem to me guite monstirous
particularly as. fraud is so haxrd to
plead and difficult to prove, if the
confines of the exception to
Foss v. Harbottle [1843] 2 Hare 4¢1
were arawn so narrowly that directors
could make a profii ouv of their
negligence ...c.oooceess’ B

In Pavlides v. Jensen & Ors;?{l956}'2 51l E.R. 518, where the

-plaintiffs alleged rhat the sale was grossly negligent because

it was at an undeirvalue, Danckwerts J. held thav the action

was not maintainable. He xreasoned thus at page 523 -

“on the facts of the present case
+he sale of the company’'s mine was
noit beyond the powers of the
company, and it is not alleged to
be ultra vires. There is nre
allegation of fraud on the parc of
the directors or appropriation of
assets of the company by the
majority shareholders in fraud of
i{he minority. It was cpen to the
company, on the resolution of a
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"majority of ‘lhie shareholders, to
sell the mine at a price decided
Ly the company in that manner, and

1t was open to the conpany by a
vote of the majority zo decide
that, if the direcloxs by their
necgligence or error oF judement

ey at

had seld the company’s niine at

an undervalue, proceedings should
not be taken by the conipany
againsc the divechers. (.....eees

o
These authoritics lead me Lo the view that unless the
reach of duty bencfits the divectors ov some of them, then the
negligence will be reyarded as a problam of infernal mnanagement
or rather mismanagemenc. Thus there must be sone breach of qut
involving iiapropriety which can be ascribed to the management.
With respect to its internal management. a company may have to
live with foolish directore or an a.miable set of lunatics but
neither their folly ner lunacy gives minority shareholders a

basis for a derivative action.
In the instant case, the negligence was pleaded in

-

paragrapih 22 in this mnanner -

"22. Further and/or in the alternalive
the said loss and damage arising

frxom the nurchacse c¢i ithe
properties at a grossly inflated
price was caused by tie negligence
of the bDefendant Lirectors and of
Lthe Twelfth Defendant.

PARTICULARS

(i) Feiling to pay u reaszonable
price or to zorego the
purchase2 and looik for more
raasonalkly priced land,

—
[ N
[ =)

—

Failing tc¢ obtain any or
an adequate number of
professional valuations of
the properiies,

(iii)} slternatively. disregarding
cr failing to sely on cr on
the majority cf the profession-
21l valuaticns obtained;

{iv} Relying on thei: own uninformed
valuations of the piopertiles

or on thz2iy own assumpticns as
to the proper price to be paid
for it."
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The negligence pleaded'in1my vlew, refers to and involves a
management decision, That is'notfa_question for the Court;
that is a question which calle:ror bueiness Judgment. There

is5 no guestion but L.at the appellane had, by its memorandum
and articles of a55001at10n- the pPower to purchzase property for
its business and the pPrice pald Gn a purchase of Property was

a bona fide exercise of rts pcwers it was Loxd Wilberforce

who said in chardiSmith Ltd v;“Ampol Petrolem Ltd {1574 a.c.

. ' “There ' is no’ appeal on merits fron .
management decisions to courts of
law; nor will courts of law assume
to-act as a kind of supervisory
board over decisions within the
powers of man gement honestly
arrlved at. "o ’f' B '

The Court will not 1nterfere 1n uch matters.l The allegatlona
contained in the averments at_paragraph 22 of the amended
statement of claim GO not make any allegatwon of 1mpropr1ety
whatever. There is no. suggestrén in any shape or form of any
benefit to any dlrector of the company. The conclusion is
inevitable therefore that the derlvatrve action which the ~Jjudge
permitted to be nalnLalned could not proceed on the basis of
the negllgence pleaced in the anended statement of clalm. o
i There remains only Lhe questlon of fraud. I can now
refer to pParagraphs 17-19 of the amend statement of claim‘A‘
whlch Mz, Manaerson-Jones conLendee, contained the allegarlen E

ef'fraud. An examlnarlon w1ll show that so far as paragraph

17 wenr,.lt arleged that all the defendants except the lOth

Defendant CQLSLd the appellant to purchase property at a prlce

of $49 189 million dollars. Paragraph 13 alleged that the

prlce was in excess of profe551onal valuatrons and paragraph 9

alleged -

\"-.
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(i} that the .defendants knew the
price was excessive:
(ii) did not honestly believe it
» . was worth the sum paid or did
not care what was the value;

(iii) conspired together to purchase
-at an overvalue. :

The learned,judge-iﬁ;deéling with the gquestion cf fraud

said this -

"There is a guestion of who should
pay transfer tax, and there is a
veiled suggestion of fraud on the
Minority ....eee..”

He ended his judgmént in the fdllowing terms -~ .

"The question is whether the Plaintiffs
are entitled to’ continue this matter.

I come to the conclusion with a great
deal of difficulty, that at this stage,
& question cf fraud is alleged by the
‘Plaintiffs. They should be entitled

to maintain a derivative action for the
benefit of the Thirteenth Defendant.

211 we have here are allegations. I
think that it 'would come within the
exception to the rule in

FO5S V. HAREOTTLE. The question of
fraud not ultrazvires should be dealt
with properly:at'a trial, This matter
should proceed to trial so that the
matter can be resclved. Fraud is
alleged, -all directors concerned are
involved:as ' parties to the aciion.”

It is plain, ffom wﬁéf Heisaid, tha£ he had befo;g him
the several affidavits, inclu&iggggmdhg’éthers, affidavifs filed .
by HMr. Hector Berna;diﬁhé!depdsé@ion behali of the plaintifﬁ;ﬁand ;
by'Mr. William Bertram on behalf of T.0.J. The judge requiféd}
this raterial to dééidé?yhétber$the plaintiffs had established. a f
pPrima facie case that the action fell within the exceptioﬁéiﬁﬁf

the rule in Foss v. Harbottle (supra). Before dealing with this

material however, I desire to make two comments regarding first,

the pleadings as to fiaud and secondly, regarding Mr. Bernard®s

=

affidavit.
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bWith regard to the pleadings, it is a well known rule

that 1f fraud is being pleaded,; particulars thereof must be

given. Gection 170 (1) of the Civil Procedure Code provides

as fellows -

Fl70.

-~

(1) In all cases in which the
pariy pleading relies o: any
Lilsrepresentai ‘on, fraud, brewch
of trust, wilful default or
undue influence, and in all
other cases in which naviticulars
Lmay be necessary beyond such as
are exemplified in the Forms
aforesaid; particulars (with
dates and items if necessary)
shall be stated in the pleading:”

-

Paragraph 19 which 1 repeat clearly breached this irule but

Mr. Manderson-Jones not lacking confidence in his pleadings,

maintained that frauu was adequately particularised:

1%,

The first and Second Defendants,
the Direcior Dcfendants and the
Twelfth Defendant all fully well
iInew that the land was not worth
or valued at the price paid for It
or did not nonestly believe that
it was or acted in reckless dis-
regard of wihiether 14 was or was
not and conspired together to have
the company purchase cvhe said land
at a grossly inflated price as a
consequence wvhereof Telecommunications
of Jamaica Limitced has suffered
considerable loss and damage.

PARTICULARS
Difference Letwecen contract
price and market price = $30,0060,0600.00

(Estimated)

Purchaser's costs of
cransfer 2,600,500.CG0
{Estimated)

Purchasers Attorney’'s
fecs 1,6C66,000.00
{Estimated}

$34,000,600.00

Hothing therein stated amounted in my view, to fraud. The

pleadings contained no averment ithat there was any benefii to

any of the defendants.

T
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Fraud in this regarc, means an abuse cof power, that is,;
the misuse of a fiduciary position which injures the company.

Lord Davey in Burland v. Earle [1902] A.C. §3 at page 93

-illustrated this meaning of fraud when he said ~
"e..... the cases in which the minority

can maintain such an action are, there- ;

fore confined to those in which the acts |

complained of are of a fraudulent

character or beyond the powers of the

company. A familiar example is where the /

majority axre endeavouring directly or

indirectly to appropriate to themselves ;

money, property,-or advantages which /

belong to the company, or in which the

other shareholders are entitled to

participate, ......,."

-

& Templeman J. (as he then was)jin.Daniels V. Daniels (supra) at

page 96 gave a number of examples -
"+eecs.... The principle which wmay be

gleaned from Alexander v. Automatic

Telephone Co [1900; 2 Cn 56 (directors

benefiting themselves) from

Coke v. Deeks {1916] 1 &.cC. 554, [1s15-

- 177 A1l E.R. Rep. 285 (directors

diverting business in their own favour)

and from dicta in Pavlides v. Jensen

[1956] 2 A1l E.R. 518 [1956] Ch. 565

(directors cppropriating assets of the

company) is that a minority shareholder

who has no other remedy may sue where

directors use their powers intentionally

Oor unintentionally, fraudulently or

negligently in a manner which benefits

themselves at the expense of the company..."

So far as paragfaph' lé“of the pleadings wentyrit could
ex facie, charitably‘be‘interéreted as suggesting that the
— ———  defendants were not acting in‘the best interests of the  company
because fhey purchésed the'préperty récklessly at an inflatéd_
value; and conspired togetherfto de so. However, no overt acts
of this conspiracy were particularised as required by the Civil

Procedure Code. Mr. Manderson-Jones " argument that the mere

averment of a conspiracy, for example to purchase at an’' overvalue,
constitutes fraud is, I fear, ill-conceived. The conspiracy
rnust be to benefit the directors, to divert business in their

own favour ox appropriating assets of the company or some-act of
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a frauvdulent character. The ahthorities to which I have
referred make that perfectly plain.

The other comment which I fereshadowed, relates to these
affidavits. An affidavit is evidence in writing. It speaks to
the personal knowledge of the deponent. Sce section 408 Civil
Procedure Code which provides -

“408. Affidavit shall be confined to
such facts as the witness is
able of his: own knowledge to
prove, except that on interlocu-
tory proceedings or with leave
under section 2724 or section 367
of this law an affidavit may -
- contain statements of information .
and belief with the sources and
grounds thereof."
Arguments of the deponent are therefore rmperm1551ble Hearsay

evzdence is only perm1551ble if the source and grounds thereof,

are stated. pr. Bernard's aff1dav1t is defective in those

respects. It also_contains assertions of facts, but no evidence
to substantiate these assertions;. That limited the materlal _ ;
which the judge below could have con51dered or for that natter, i
which we ourselves are entltled to take into account. Illustrations
of these defects _appear hereafter._

| The relevant aetalls of the purchase abouL whlch the
plaintiffs complaln, appear 1n the affidavit of Mr. Bertram

T.0.3. was formed he stateu, for the purpose of 1mplement1ng a
JOlnt venture between the Governnen of Jamalca and Cable and
Wireless (West Indles) Limited with the object of acqulrlng
Jamintel and the Jamarca Telephone Company Limited (J. T.C. )
J.T.C. had obtalned reports prepared by Cable and ereleas PLC
of the United Klngdon to assess the needs of J.T.C. One of the
recommendations was the acculsltlon of a suitably 51zed area as
a telephone service centre. These reports were presented to a

Board Meeting of J.T.C. held 29th August. 1986. Present were the

4th, 5th, 1¢th, 1lth, and 12th defendants. The twelfth.defendant
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declared his indirect 1nterest because the sites at Hewport West
and Washington Boulevard whlch Wwere recommended were owned by
Development Properties Limited, a company of which he was a
director and which itself was owned by another company - Indusirial
Commercial Developments Limited in which he was a shareholder and
a director. The Board requested an engineering appraisal of the
Newport West site, that the company's interest in the properties
be communicatedé to the owner and that alternative sites be’
presented.

Pursuant to the dlrectlves of the Board, negotiations
between the management team began with ‘the owners of both 51tes.

At some point in the negqtlat;ons,_the owners had reduced their
asking price to $49 Million net. The J.T.C. Board gave its
approval for the properties to be purchased at a figure not'
exceeding $46 Million net. It was agreed that that dec151on
should be put to the T. O J. Board for ratification. That_
ratification came at a meetingwgn the same date. Present were
the 6th, 7th, 9th and 10th defepdants° The twelfth defendaht
withdrew. The properties were purchased in December 1588 at a
price of $46 Million net. A new Board of Directors for T. 0 J
was subsequently appoxnted oy the sharehclders. That newly

.
constituted Board on 2nd July,_l990 re-affirmed and adopted the
decisions of the pPrevious Boardfapproving the acquisition of the
prqperties.

The price actually reeeited by the owners was $46 Million /?
net but that as might well be agbreciated, did not represent the
consideration for the propertieef" The agreement for sale shows
that the purchase money was staeed to be $49,189,200.00. A
receipt 1ef1ecting:the payment,ef';ransfer tax was exhibited
showing $3.6 Million ;epresentiqg 7.5 percent of the consideration.

To make allegatione of freud may be a comparatively simple

exercise, but its proof is not to be undertaken lightly. This
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leads me to examine the affidavits deposed to by Mr. Bernard.

I can now examine the plalntlffs material. Mr. Bernard’ s‘
affidavit contained an allegation of some breach of section 18
of the Transfef Tax ﬁct whieh was committed by cextain
unspecified defendants. Thefe were no averments in the pleadings
which could alloﬁ this evidehce to be adduced. The breach
alleged was that the transfe}ee had not paid the Transfer Tax
as required by seetion.lﬁ‘(45 of the Act. The offence which is
created by sectien‘IS,(S) isﬁin the following terms -

18, (1-4A) ..iiveeenenooncasnasonnns cens
(5) Every transferee who contravenes -
the requirement to make any payment
under subsection (4) shall be guilty
¢f an offence against this Act.”

Plainly the offence created:;is the failure by the transferee to
pay the eépropriate tax to %he Commissioner of Stamp Duties.
Mr. William Bertrem, the sénier Vice President Finance and
Secretary of T,O.J.:exﬁibite&'a receipt from the Stamp
Commissioner ae.proof.ef payment of the relevant tax liabiiity.
The effect of this is thaf there was no evidence of a 7
contraventlon of the act by the directors (the transferee).

Then there wvere paragraphs asserting that the purchase price
was false or misiea&ihg-. Pefagraph‘ 13 states as followss ~~

“13. THAT likewise the statement in
paragraph 21 of the Affidavit
sworn to by WiLLIAM WILBERFORCE
BERTRAM. on 7th August, 1990, that
"the sum of $49,189,200.00......
was within .the authority conferred
to negotiate for a price of $46
million net of costs’ is manifestly
false and nisleading as $49,189,200.060
is the RET price stated in the
Transfer and on the Certificate of
Title of which William Wilberforce
Bertram was aware or ought to have
-been aware and which, curiously enough
are not exhibited to his affidavit.
Moreover, the seventeen-page Affidavit
of William Wllberforce Bertram
interestingly fails to state the
price whether net or yross actually
paid for the properties and the break-
down of the price, if gross."”



“21-

This is plainly argument, notrévidencerof any fact. For present
purposes, it‘is‘who;ly;inqugb;g of- being subsumed under any head
of liability.,. ... ey Rp

: Thereafter.followedugzngmber of paragraphs of arguments to
show that .the price paid was in..excess of the average valuations
submitted by_the_three,professipnal_valuators-requiredato submit
their opinions. On that basis,,in paragraph 1§, Mr. Bernard -
came to the conclusion. of overvalue. He deposed as follows -

i

i8. . THAT the properties were therefore - . . ..: .
‘purchased at a consjiderable over-
oo ... value of which:all Defendants Were - ...
- fully aware at the time the purchase .
: -_yastadg,?ﬁ.éﬂ_ R . _ ‘ L S

Then in paragraph323za_chagggﬁwégzmade against. the President of . .
T.O,J,AMr._ChantreL;g, ~What was alleged against him was that,----
"he:pad:knowingly.gnd:ﬁglsely:pgpresented himself to be signing- :
as a. Director that no seal was affixed.” Thig was wholly false
because Mr._Chant;el;e;was.a director and had properiy signed the
instrument’ of transfer as such:and the common seal had been-duly
affixed. In.drafting‘thejgffidayitsin these terms, the attorney
on the reccrd for the_pla;ntiffgﬁMr.-MandersoneJones, was-guilty

of the greatest irresponsibility, for he should have made the most

: careful check to ensure he_had his facts right before .causing such

- a disgrapeful”statgment?;o be made in Mr. Bernard's affidavit. He

did apologize to,us.in.openACQur; but it must be said the damage. had
already been dpne.zhypthing in ;he.remaining paragraphs, (and in
total_there vwere :some 49 parggfqphs including guotations and
sub paragraphs) contained any. evidence whatsocever capable of ., ;.
supporting the averments .of "fraud". in paragraph 19 .of the amended
statement of claim,?wq.;jux [

It was‘necgssary:;pﬁqndepgake this examinatiothO-jgyv
demonstrate the completetqbsenceipfaany;relevant material, ;And

at the .end of the,day,;the:pleadings_not.having alleged fraud in .
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the sense I have adumbrated, it is not perhaps surprising |
that this prolix and argumentétive affidavit, provided no |

material whatever to mount an attack on the ground of fraud

against any of the défeﬁdants:

Since the plaintiff's peésonal action can nevertheless
be maintained against the deféndantsF I do not think it is
necessary to consider fhe amofphous allegations which relate
to each individual defehdant'in that regard. The only
allegation of impropriety viz, that against Mr. Chantrelle
which found itself in an affidavit was entirely without.
foundation. The conclusion at which I have arrived .did hot
come about as has been suggeséed in some quarters because there
were ranged against a solitary inexperienced attorney, a number
of eminent Queens Counsel, but because the action he initiated,

was wholly misconceived.

If there is existing evidence of impropriety which has

-

‘resulted in benefit to any director, that evidence has not

been forthcoming. Allegations of fraud, ought not to .be made
lightly and it is not fraud because a company purchases -

property from a company of one of its own directors at a price

in excess of the-average of three valuation figures. The .. :

question must be whether the price paid was that which“a
willing purchaser would pay to a willing buyer. 1In this case,
the figure paid was less than the asking price. Moreover, -
where the evidence is clear that the director concerned
declared his interest, took no part in any discussion at Board
meetings on the matter and received no Board papers on the
matter; it is scandalous in the absence of any evidence whatever

to the contrary, to impute impropriety or other mala fides to

him as Mr. Bernard suggested in his affidavit. Paragraph 26

* is an example of the sort of scandalous material which section

408 of the Civil Procedure Code forbids. It was in the following

form -
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"26. Furthermore, that the Twelfih

Defendant may have left the Eoard
Room of the Thirteenth Defendant
does not mean that he also left

’ the Poard Rooms of Industrial
Commercial Developments Limited
or of Development Properties
Limited. Nor does his leaving the
Board Room mean that he did not
continue to have unrestricted
access to informatiocn, including
beard papers, and to wield
influence over the management and
ithe Loard of the Thirteenth
Cefendant in connection with the
transaction for the purchase of the
properties.”

I have said enough to show that neither the pleadings nor
the 2ffidavits of Mr. Bernard provide a scintilla or a so&pcon
of evidence of fraud. The learned judge having found a 'veiled
suggestion of fraud;' was in error when he concluded on that
footing that “a question of fraud is alleged by the plaintiffs
they were entitled to maintain a derivative action." Having
also said ~ "all we have here are allegations," he should have
been altéfed to his functions in respect of the preliminary
issue, namely, that he could not decide the issue on mere

allegations but that he was required to satisfy himself that a

prima facie case had been establiszhed. Prudential Assurance Co.

Ltd. v. Newman industries Ltd & Ors. {supra) at page 365. That

1s enough, in my view to disposeof this appeal.
Before parting with this case, 1 am constrained to deal
with a matter of profound importance which occurred in the course
of the hearing. |
After the matter was called on, I intimated to counsel
appearing befcre the Court, that each member of the Court was
a shareholder in the thirteenth defendant company. It could
be said we declared interest - our purpose was a negative cne,
to prevent or forestall rumour, gossip and unirnformed talk. But

for Mr. Manderson-Jones there was not a disentient voice with
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respect to the Court's composition. He stated that he objected
to the Court on the basis of bias - in thatthe members of the
Court owned shares in the thirteenth defendant's company. We
overruled his objection and the appeal proper began.

Sadly we are not in the position of the English Court of

Appeal when Lexd Denning in Bromley London Borough Council v.

Greater London Council and Another [1582] 1 Rll E.R. 129 at

page 131 could speak with confidence when he stated the position
in England thus -

"At the outset I would say that all
three members of this couri are .
interested on all sides. We are all
fare-paying passengers on the tubes
and buses and benefit from the 25%
cut in fares, My wife and I also have
the benefit of senior citizens to
travel free. We are all ratepavers
in the area of Greater London and have
to pay the increase rates imposed by
the supplementary precept. Ho
objection is taken by any party to
our hearing the case, Any Court of

- Appeal would be ijkewise placed.”

We are not likewise similarly placed.
Subsequently, however Mr. Leo-Rhynie; Q.C. supported by
his colleagues brought to our attention, the old case of

Dymes v. Grand Junction Canal (1€52) 3 H.L.C. 759. I called

their attention o R. v. Mulvihull {19SC; 1 All E.R. 435 and

invited counsel to assist us by any submissions they cared to
make on the subject. 1 am much indebted to counsel who greatly
assisted us,

Judicial impaiitiality is undoubtedly an essential element
in the administration of justice, hence the rule that no man
should be a judge in his own cause. it i1s a translation of a
latin maxim - "nemo judex in re sua.® This rule against bias
has been applied extensively over the years agains:t inferior
tribunals whether of justices or magistrates or other

administiative bodies through the prerogative remedy of
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certiorari.; As this remedy is‘not available against superior
Courts, it is. perhaps not.surprising that there are few cases
1nvolvrng those: Courts.ﬁfOneigf.these.and the case most often,

referred to, is Dymes v. Grand Junction Canal [1852] 3 H.L.C.

759 which suggests that the rule applies to courts no matter how
august thelr status. ~In that case, Lord Cottenhan L.C. in a
Chancery SULt had afflrmed a. number of decrees made by the
Vlce—Chancellor in. favour of a canal company in which the

Lord Chancellor was a shareholder. Lord Cottenham s decrees
were set a51de by the House of Lords by reason of his pecuniary

-'._4.(

interest and the house of Lords 1tself con51dered ithe: appeal on
its merits and afflrmed the decrees of the Vrce~Chancellor.
[EE T ‘-a H Tyt

It is, I thrnk -1mportant to. understand this case 1n the

¢

context of 1ts tlmesﬁ”‘ln 1852, at the tlme of this declslon

T--\ n

the prlnc1ple -in Salomon v. Salomon & Co {1897] a.C. 22 of a

corporate personalltyfhad not?been developed or appreciated.

it certalnly was -not . then apprecrated that a company upon

1ncorporatron becomes a legal entlty separate and dlstlnct from

ﬁ

its members.f In the state that the law then stood 1t was. an f
r Y !\- :
easy step to. hold that a shareholder owned the business which

the company: ran.; hus 1t could be and was held by the trial
judge and the Court of Appeal that the company formed was a
mere sham and an allas,“:agent trusree or nomlnee for Salomon
' who remalned the real propraetor of the busrness. The decision

of the House of Loxd in; that,case settled the concept of a

P £ 7 -

corporate personalrty.( s ;:‘

AT L

But even before 1897, thehyear'of‘salomon v. Salomon {supra),

the view tnat because a. Judge mlght have shares 1n a company
which was lnvolved 1n lltzgatlon, dlsquallfled him from
participating in the hearing, was being seriously gquestioned.

in London and North-Wlestern Railway Co. v. Lindsay [1856]}

3 McQueen's Appeal 99 which was a case before the House of Lords,
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Lord Cranworth, L.C. intimated to the Bar that a member. of

the House,.Lord\ﬂens}eng}a

. would not be present because he
was a sharehqlde;l;p.;be_R;;&wgy Company. The;effollowedxthis
exchange betweenﬁBepch;aq§,§§;4f

. ~Mr. Attorney General: Sir R. Bethell
1 very much regret it, my Lords.
.Assent‘qntmy:partﬂ,as representing the
Railway Company, would not be of any
ravail, but I rather apprehend that my
learned friends who appear fcr the
Respondent, if they had been here, would
have joined with me in that regret.

“Ihe Lord Chancellor: " T must say that Lo lomring
in the present state of our social ‘
relations,’whénlalmostceverybody has i niroares
shares in some or other of these companies,
to suppose:that” that - disqualifies them ' © &
from discharging judicial functions in o

”cases“in‘which?those’companies are REE LSS £
concerned is a very dangerous doctrine.
Mr. Attorney General:’ Certainly,

. my Lord;ﬂl.urged-;hat:very strongly in
a case that arose’ in this House some

' ¥Years ago.Grand Junction Railway v. Dymes

Lord Brougham: You mean in the case in
which Lord Cottenham:was a shareholder.: v+

.. Mr., Attorney General: .Yes, my Lord; but
1 am sorry to say that the rule in that
case was carried to a very great extent., . .
in former times it"will be remembered that "

it was not. the rule acted upon. Lord Eldon. .. ..

was'a”holder'of‘Bank"stock, but he never T

ffor_a,mqment:considered that he was . - .

disqualified"from"adjudicating in a case

. in which the Bank, was concerned; but.at. .. Sl

 present the law so stands, that 1 am =+ 7 “EL

afraid it woulé require the interference_of,_-_h
the Legislature. ™ = ' ' ' T

Lord Brougham: " Even if the consent of the 1y
parties were given.

Ihe Lord Chancellor: I do not think that -
any. legislative interference can be necessary
in the case of appeals to this House, for
according to that rule, in almost every case
the'decision'must'be”had, because the judgment
is the judgment of . the House itself, and
there is, we may’ depend upon it, in every
case some one Poor or other who has an .
‘interest in"'the“case where a large company-

. is concerned.”

%

g

LAY
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If I might leap;the:eenturyyand_three decades since that

case, we come to R v, Mu1v1hu11 ({1990} 1 All E.R. 436, a

decision of the Engllsh Court of Appeal {Criminal Division).

The fact that this was a criminal case, is not in ny view,

of any significance because the rule as to bias remains the

same whatever the naeure of the case There the appellant

was charged with and convicted7of conspiracy to rob, the

case against him belng that. he haa actually been involved in

5ix robberies and. one attempted robbery at premises belonging ﬁ

to various banks .and bulldlng7§QC1et1es. One of the offences - ‘

had taken Place at a branch of a -bank in which, at the tlme 'g

of the trial, the trial. judge owned 1,650 shares.. The. judge

did not dlsclose.h}s sharehpld&ngﬁln open court. The appea;;ﬁ;ﬁm

was taken on the-g;ound_that,npad he known of the judgefs_r¢¥

shareholding the,appellant'woq}d,have objected to his

conducting the trial. The appeal was dismissed, the court,

holding that where. the. judge had no direct pecuniary interest

in the outcome butyhaﬁ;lnsteadgan interest which fell short. . -

of being a direct,pecuniary.inferest, there was no pPresumption

of bias. Instead the test was. whetheL a reasonable and fair-: N

minded person, sitting 1n court at the trial and knowxng that&g L?7~

the trial judge held. 1,850 shares in one of the banks which .. {

the appellant was said to have . robbed, woulG, not reasonably i

have entertained such a suspicion, or would not have acted .. - x

reasonably if he had. S T m _ . ;ﬁ
- In my judgment, the rule against bias in modern form . |

means that no one may be a Judge in a cause in which he has

a direct pecuniary interest in the outcome of the case. This

interest irrespective of its extent acts as an automatic

disqualification because the law then assumes bias.
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R. v. Camborne Justices ex parte Pearce {1954] 2 All E.R. 250.

The 1nterest whlch a shareholder has in a company was

explained in Prudentlal Assurance Co. v. Newman Industries

‘& Ors. (lio, 2) (supra) (c. a. ) at page 366 - y

"The plalntsz s. shares are merely a

right of participaticn in the company

on the terms of the articles of

association. The shares themselves,

his right of participation, are not

directly affected by the wrongdoing.

The plaintiff still holds all the

shares as his own. absolutely

unincumbered property "
-1f a wrong is done to- the company, the shareholder does nqt
suffer any persconal loss. :The.loss is through the company -in
the diminution in the value of .the assets of the company. A
shareholder who happens‘toiheia.judge is in no different position.
In my view, a judge shareholder can have no direct pecuniary
interest in the outcome of this appeal.

A fagtor which should .not be left out of consideration is
the function of this Court. We are not called upon to be . ..
prlmary decision makers: we are requlred to determlne a questlon
s . of law, viz. whether there are facts which in law amount tor““

fraud. We are called upon to do SO in an 1nterlocutory appeal.

. Ve are in no drfferent pOSltlon to the judge in R. v. Mulvihull

who would have had to determlne as a matter of law whether the

facts before him amounted in law to the charges preferred
against the appellant on the 1nd1ctmenr. He had to answer the
question - Was there a prlma fa01e case to answer? rhe Court

o

of nppeal diad not suggest that 1n con51der1ng that questzon of

law, the Judge was a 3uoge 1n hlS own cause.

We can then apply the second test artlculated in

AN

R v. Hu1v1hu11 (supla) 1 e. whether the reasonable and falr-

,1¥

minded person s1tt1ng 1n thlS Court in possession of all the
relevant facts would con51der the trial unfair. To remind of

those facts -
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is concerned, some one Judge

who may rlghtly be held to be drsquallfled on the ground of

29~

co7ret s 1) o thefact thatsthe judge had shares in’
a public company T.O0.J. which shares
“r-were:marketed:'on the Stock Exchange -
and the fact that the company had an .
authorized:share' capital of One ' -+ *: ~-r

Thousand Million Dollars ($1000M)

5 i \s\

“ that” shares give a shareholder a :
right of. part1c1patlon in.the company. .. S
but”any wrong to the company is not '
.8 Qoss . ko, the. . shareholder. Dt e

.. (1ii) that the. 3udges wers not ‘trying' . . .
‘ any factual issue but considering a
.guestion of law; . = R U SR P T reey
{iv) .that whatever the outcome, the:.judge.. .. REE S
”"" as 'a‘shareholder-does not suffer a
- ... ..loss and. therefore has.no direct . T ived st
- DR ' pecunrary interest in the outcome. .

W

the reasonable fair—
. e mn

minded’ person could not reasonably nave entertalned any

1f ‘the test’ is' applled to those facts,

51\-.4-

susp1c1on ‘but’ that a falr hear;ng was ‘in progress.

=~ -

I thlnk Lord Cranworth was. rlght. If the rule aga*nst

bias neans that when a judge has shares in a company 1nvolved
e pma

that he is dlsquallfled then;lln

“('w

in litigation' before hrm;
- - ;g,v,g o .:,..\_
present day Jamalca when a great nunber of people have shar

:{r‘::".' - ﬂ‘ :}" 13 o ’ AR

in publlc compan;es, 1t would be a dangerous doctrlne. In -

oo e .
: - s AR
=t e 2R RV ‘”._\‘ it TAED s 4

thls Court of seven members where most,

. Yo e e B -_--<, T e
HEWN 3 «.“_7._,.$>‘k,z ,n‘ L2 o

1n some publlc company or other, in almost every case our

- o T ey s v,r,; [
IR s \;_;,? M £k,

dec;sron must be bad because 1n any case where such a company

Lt el H il ;’ HEl A C,.u

of appeal or other will have an

o
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1nterest

Tt s e T

make one further point in thlS

lt 15, I thlnk rlght to

bl 73: 3

regard In small soc;etles such as ours, the srtuatlon may

[ " o e TP R ot

Y

be such, that there_may be noxjudges at all to replace those
113

Tvom T i =—:'z_f.-':« Toen o 11!

3 [
‘.r,! o T

blas or mcre pre01sely, the real lllellhood of blas. In those

Boen e e RO s = ‘:-':"'l\"& ey

cases ’

El

thlS rule of natural ]ustlce musL yleld to nece551ty,

ot -
—m ER-)

An

SRR e

- A gt T o n . _

for otherw1se the machlnery of Justlce would break

3 ,f.t

down.
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‘ekémple'of‘this“occurred’iﬁ Dymes»v..Grand'Junctionicanalwlsupra)
‘where before thevappealnfrom*theuVice-Chancellor‘céme téethéﬁ
:House 'of Lords, ‘the Lord ‘Chancéllor ‘had to signfan_orderwf6r§ 'A
‘enrolment. ' It was "held'by ‘their Lordships that his’sha?eh&ldiﬁg
“im the company, ‘which-disqualified ‘him from hearing\theeéppeal,
-dia not ‘affect ‘the-enrolment 'since no one but he had powér?té
effect it. - It was said at: page 787 - "For this is a qase’oft'
‘necessity, and where:that:occurs the objection of-inteiésﬁwcannot

‘prevail,” SeeéaISOJThe’Judgeva.‘A;G.'for-Saskatchewana[1937]‘

153 T.L.R. 464 where'the 'Government of . the province'required the
Court to determine whether the salaries of judges were 1ia£le
j to income tax. The Privy Counéil confirmed that the Court was
; *eniitled to act as a matter of hecessity. \
( Since the present court comprises seven members, two of
whom own no shares in T.0.J., it would not at all be possible
f to convene a bench of three, none of whom owned shares in the
thlrteenth defendant., Mr. Manderson—Jones had argued that the
court could be constituted of the two non-shareholding members
and one shareholder. But that does not circumvent the ruie, for .
it cbuld be suggested that the.possibility of taint would affect
the two non-shareholding members. This rule of necesszty would
result in a panel of the court comprising any sort of
permutation. There would be no ideal position. In my view,
-however, for the reasons I have offered, the rule of necessity.
need not be relled on.
For the reasons I have given, I am satisfied that it is not

L

E the law that a judge is disqualified automatically from

iloae
1+

i discharging his judicial functions in a case which involves a

éompahy in which he has shares. It has to be shown that the"
‘judge has a direct pecuniary interest in the outcome, and none

of the judges has any direct pecuniary interest in the outcome
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of this 1nterlocutory appeal nor has any member of the Court

been shown to have any such lnterest. Mr. Manderson—Jones )

‘suggested that 51nce the lltlgatlon had been 1n1t1ated shares

-

_ had fallen but, -as Mrs. Hudson—Phllllps correctly po;nted out,

and be it noted thls fact appeared in Mr. Manderson~Jones' own
affldavzt, the value of the shares had since rlsen by 331/3%

" For all these reasons, I agree with my brothers that the .

'appeal should be allowed and the order of Edwards J that the

=

. derivative actlon proceed, be set aslde. The respondents, we

SRR

LR

"held, were entltled to thelr costs both here and below.
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Enshrined as the rule in Foss v. Harbottle (1843)

L jlare 4381 is the pixnciple of the suprewmacy of the majority

in a company. FrFror this 1£ follows that where there is a
complainte thazt a wiong has been done to the coupany, the

propex plazntiff is the company. Dut for gocd reasons there
are aamitted exceptions in circumstaiices which cannot be
remedied by a confirmation by the majority. The eXceptions are:

1. Where the act compiained of
is ultra vires the company
or is illegal.

2. Where the act constitutcs a .
fraud agains{ the minciiiy
and tne wrong-doars are
themselvés in control oi the
company . '

3. Vhere a resolution reguiring
a2 qualifiec majority has been
passed by u simple majority.

Arising out of the szle of two propertics to the defen-~
dant company, Telecommunications of Jamaica Limited (7.0.J.),
by Development Properties Limited, a company in which
Layer liatalon, Chairman of T.0.J., was alsco Chairman and/oxr
irector, for & price of approximately $4&,000,000 neti, the
plaintiffs commenced action agzinst the defendants/respondents

with the exception of ths thirteenta daefencant/respondent

e e e et e s

{(v.0.J.) claiming damages:

C"Yor fraua. migrepresentation
‘and or negligence avising in
relation vo the issuing by the
defencants in or about
Jeptember, 1288 of a prospec-
tuz for tne sale of ceritain
shares in Telecoummunications
of Jamaica and also in rela-
ticn to the purchase in 19388
by the company of certain
propertiss.®

vhis svit, whick carefully avoided any alilegaticns against

©*.G.J.; lay on Zhe books for & year bericre T.0.d. was added

and the allegations anendea to read sco far as is relevant -
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“Yhe plaintiffs aluc clain Gamages
on the ground that in awdition to
being fraudulent the purchase of
the said properties was vitra

vzres the Memorandum of Zssociation
¢t Yeleconswunicaticns of Jamaica
Limited ..."

This acticn by the plaintifis is known oo = derivative action

ana whenever such an action is rrought the company has the right

to have & deterwination by the Court as o Prelinirary Issue the
question whether the derivative actlion should be maintained.

By summons cated August 21, 1990; T.0.J. brought the issue
vefore the Court and after a hearing in Chambers on October ¢
and %, 199y, Bdwards, J. ordereds a

1. Tnat the plaintiffc are entitled /
Lo maintain a derivative action
on behalf of the thirteenth o
defendant.

He granted lecuve to appeal and fixed the date for tha hearing
of ‘he Sunmons for Directicns pending the hearing of the appeal.
iThis oppeal is against his order that the derivative action be

maintained. The four grounds on whicn that order is challenged

1. uy summons dated 2lst aAugust 1590
the Thirteenth Defendant applied
to the Court to Geternine as o
preliminary issue the right of the
Plaintiffs/Respondents to naintain
the dcrivative action purportedly
brovght for the benefit oi the
Thirceeuth Defendant herein. Prior
to the hearing of the summons afcre-
mwentionea the Plaintiffs/kespondents
raiseda the followiny three 1ssues
for the determination of the learned
Judge, the first two of which were
iir objection to the hearing of the
cforementioned Sumaons cf the Thir-

teenth Defendanc: -
{1} that the Cwmmons was not pro-

constituted, —
{ii} that the fuammons was.oul of

time as the oloadiugs hod
been clesed, suvnmons for
Lirections faNed for hearing
and chereiore tvhe application
was an abuse of the piccess of
the Court,

B

i




" prainciples aifirnec in theg cases

_3(5._ '

1xi}) that the duponents to Affi-~
caviis f£iled con behalf of
the Yhirteench Defendant/
Appellant should be ordered
tc attend for cross-
exanination.

The lecrned Judge deternsined oho
chira arforesaid issue ralsec by p
the Plaintifts/kesponéencs by
yuling that crouss-exemanation
zheould only bLe ordered in excap-
ticnal circumstances and that it
wouid uot be aopropriate ai what
stage to order the deponcnts to
Affidavics filed on behall of

the Thirteenth Defrndant/
£ppellant to attend foir gross—
examinaion. _However the

learneda Judge misapprehended that
e ought to have ruled on the
first two aforesaid issues raised
in limine Ly the Pla.ntiifs/
Respcnaents before hecaiving and
deternining the Luwuwons of the
Thirteenth bDefendant afure-
mentioned and instead erred by
orcering that the Plaintiffs/
Respondents were entitled to
maintain the qerivative accion
herein thereby ef techLVLly
ueternining the substant:ive
Summons of the Thircveenih
Defendant aforementioned with-
cut firstly ruling omn the afore-
said issues in linine ralseu by
tne Plainciffs/Bespondents and
without evidence peinc adduced
anc¢/oi suumissions belng nade

in respect of {he said Sumaons

Ly the partles thereto,

The learned Judye erred wuen he
founa that the Plaintiffs/
Hespondents were encitlied to
naintawn a daerivative action as
his findings were conirary to
sucii order having .regara Lo cae

0L PRUDKHTIAL ASSURAKCE COU. LTD.
V. NEWMAN IHDUSTRIED LLMETED B0,
2 ¢3%02% 1 BLLER 354 anc 8MIE v,
CROPY (Ho. 2) 1587 3 wir 405,

“he learned Judge zailed o
gppreciate ithat the Pleintiffs/
respondence should noc be ailowed
1ty maintein tiie derivative action
on behalf of the Thictesnih
Defenuant/appellanc unless the
action fel!l within the propers
boundarzes oi the sxcopiion o

the rule in POSE v. BARLUUTYLE

thet is o say that the Plaintifis/




~3h-

Respondents had on tlic evidence
adduced established a prima facie
case that 1) the acts complained
of were ultra virseg, illegal or

a fraud perpetrated on the Company
and ii) the (ompany was prevented
from being properly joined as a
Piaanciff to the acticn by reason
of the fact that it was controlled
by the wrongdoers. in failiing to
finé a prima facie case of either
wrongGoing or control by ihe
wrongdoers, the learn=ad Judge
erved in ordering that the deriva-
tive action could be maintained.

~. The learned Judge ersyed in failing
0 order that the deraivative
action ouwyht not to be pursued by
iue Plaintiffs/Respondenis in
light of his f:ndings which were
as follows:

(i} The acts complained of by
the Plaintifis/sespondents
were not ultra vires the
cipjects contained in the
Memorandum of Associaticn
of the Thirteenth Defendant/
Appellant

{ii) “he affidaviis of the
- Plaintiifs/Pespondents did
T not go keyond mere allega-
tions cu asservions of
fraud

(f1i} %The Plaintififs/Respondents
had mads no recguest ox
approach to “:he Tiuiiriteenth
Defendant/ippelliant for it
o consideyr the bLringing
of s=uch an actiocn.” _

,

T.0.J. ig a public company with & share capital of

Jd81,000,U00,080 and several millious of 1vs shares were offevred

on sile to the pupiic. In addition, iis shares zie guoted on

the Jamaican Stock Exchange. © Aware that five cf the seven
Judges comerising the Court of Appeal (which five include the
three presiding Judges) are sharebclders in %.0.J., the Court
tinoughc it best to make the disclosure rather than leave it to
be discovered. Fkir. Leo-Rhynie, ¢.C.. after consultatiocn,
speaiing on wenalf of z2ll counsel, except Mr. Handerson-Jjones,

saia they had uU Chjectaoun to tha Rench, a5 constituted., For
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hig part, Kr. Manderscn-Jones stated that if the Court accepted
nis sugyestion made by letter which he had exhibited and remit
the case to ths Court pelow, he would raise no objection but
otherwise he would okject on the yround of bias. He announced,
in rather unbecom:yny manner, that he agreea with the first
grounda of appeal and accordingly he had nothing to argue ang
vould pe withdrawing from the Court to attend e oa trial

natter clsewhere. He was only deterrea from carrying cout this

V]

Ct ©f Giscourtesy by a stern warning from the Bench and there—

¥

F o
i

ter he Gra nothing to disguise his digpleasure and, indeed,r
had to bLe cautioned more than once. <Such conduct is inexcug-
ably contumelious.

the objection based én bias was cver-suled., To my (;7
mind, it is unthinkable that Judges of Appeal, who are all ’
qualified lawyers with years of experience, could be thought E/
to be influenced by any questicn of bias in dealing with the }

ki

questions which come before the:: for determination. And, in‘

my opinion, the Judces of the supreme Court ought to be regarded

in the same light. io evidence is needed to conclude that the L

various Judges of this land would not be able to make a signi-
ficant contribution to the asseis of tne various banks in the
country. Bui, if for no other reason than for convenience, the
Judges do use the scrvices of these banks. Is it to be said’
that whenever cases involving banks are before the Couris a
poll has to be taken to decermine which Judge has an interest
in any such bank? In our population ¢f Gjust a little over two
willion people, there are just seven Judges sitting in the
Court of Appeal and twenty-one in iic Supreme Court. It is

nov cdifricult to envisage a situation in which, 1f this allega-

oy

tion of kias were countenancea; that it might be mmpossible to
find a Judoe vco adjudicate in a cage concerning & bank, a mort-—

gage institution, an insurance cchnpany o©r any other financial
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instituticon in which, in the normal conducit of hisg affairs, a
Judge may have & financial intersst.
inasnuchl &g no authorities weire before the Court at
the conmencement of this matte;, although reference was made to
decided principles, counsel, With the exception of
Mr. Manderscn-Jones, on the following day scught leuve to bring

to the touri's “ention certain cases including:

Pymes vs., Grand Junction Canal Co.
Proprietors (1852) 3 H,L.C. 759

R. v. Burton and another, Justices
Exparte Young (1:57) 408

R. v, Mulvihill (1690} i A3l B.R. 435,

-

The majority of the cases cited stemmed from decisions in

Justices Courts znd were the pronouncements of Review Tribunals

which we doubted could apply tec a Court of Appeal., K. V. Malwvi-

hill (supra) was a criminal case in which the accuscd had been
convicted of conspiracy tc rob, the caze against him being that
he was actually involved in six robberies and one attempted
robbexy at premises belonging Lo various banks and building
societies. One ol the offences had tazern place &t a branch of
a bank in wviich, zt¢ the time of the appellunt's trxial, the trial
judge owned 1950 shares., The Juage did not disclose his shaze-
holding in open Court. The appe¢lunh conttended that had he
known of the Judge's shareholding he would have onjected to his
cenduceing the {rial. “The appecl was dismissed and aithough
that case involved trial by judge and jury in which the Judge
only c¢ave effect <o the findings of the jury the principles
stateu by the Court of appeal are of assiscance here. In giving
tha judgment of ihe Court, Brooie, J. s&id at page 43%:

‘I'hese are twe clear and distinct

lines of authorities which help a

court in determining what test to

PpPly when it i1s contended that a

-’.- - - . -

Judicial decision should ke set

aside on the grounds that the

adjudaicaztor has an interecst, real
or perceived, in the outcome of
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“the pLoueeulngs. the first of
these lines of authoriiy 1s con-
cerned with cases in whici: the
adjuaicatoi has a uirect pecinl
ary interest in the outcome of
the case. In these cases the
Court applies very strictly the
maxim that nobody may be a judge
in his own cause, and decisions
which are made in those circum-
stances are voidable because bias
is conclusively piresumed. ‘fhe
other line of authoricy is con-~
cerned with cases in which there
is no such direct pecuniaxy
intercst in che outcome ci the
case, »ut the surrounaing circum-
stances give rise toe a rzasonable
suspicion that justice is not
being done because an adjudicator
has an iInterest which falls short
of being a direct pccuniary .
nter est°

‘In such a' case there is no
such presumpition as arises in
the case of a pecuniary
lngerest, but the gquestion

is whether ithere is a real
likelihood, zrising from
ciycumstances such as would
give rise to a chalilenge to

the favour, chat the juage

or justice would have a bias®.*

There is a caveat to be observed in Gealing with the guestion

of direct pecuniary interes® which is that cases which pre-date

Salomon v. Salomon & Co. Ltd., (18%7) a.o . 22 (which established

the distinction between the company anu the shareholéder) are
not likely to be very helpful., It is ity considered opinion,

atfter a4 full discussion of the cases; that the position of the

~ Judges of the Court heaxing this peal is notin conflict with

the prlnglgles stated 1n R. v, ﬂulv;hlll {supra). The Court's

criginal decisicn remained unalicred.

Let me ot return to the appeal proper. ic¢ was subQ
mitted that the learned LL-al judge dealt only with the third
of the tnree issues and then found in favour of wche vlaintiifs.
Viith thiz the plaintiffs/respondents agree and would have the
matter remitted to the learned judge for furiher consideracion.

However, from submissions made before us ana from a reading cof

i
|
|
[
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the judgmenc deliverecn Ly the learned judge, it 1s clear tha
the issues were fully vencilated before hirn. It follows that .g
this Court is egually seised of tho issues and since a remittal;q
woula incur furvher delay and costs it was aeciced aot to Ua
Feuit the case,

wrouncs 2, 3, and 4 are reall 1% Zepetitive of the
complaint against the order declaring the entitlement of the
Plaintiffs/respondents to maincain the derivative action.

Puch an order involves a finding that the case falls withiu the

exception to the Rule in Foss v. Harbottle {(supra). But this -

- 4§ 10t under the heaaing of ultra vires. The iearnea judge

Raue a specific fiuding that the purchase of the properties
was not an ultra vires act. Ané that nmust, indeed, be so.
To Le ulira vires the CCoupany, an act musi be beyond the
objects for whicih it is incorpcrated. Consequently, the
coipany could neither initiate the act nor approve it in a
general meeting., What ©.0.J. has done is Lo acguire property,
an act specifically provided foi by objcect No. 16 of the Memoran-
cum of Association, which, so far as is relevani, reads:

“f¢ purchase or by any other

Leans acguire any Lreebolu

luasehold Gy any other propsrty

for any estate or 1ntc1e t wnat—

ever guc.”
Supportive of this object is ciject No. 40, which reacs:

1o do all such other titings as

ey be devuwed incirdental or con-

Gucive to the attainnent of “he

- &bove cbjects or any of them.®

50 the acguisition of property cannot ke ultra vires the
Coupany. dowever, it appears that sir. manderscr~-Jones sought
to imbue the ultra vires principle with & new meaning. He
contended that W.G,.J. was not autherized to make the acquisi-
tion for the price paiu which he maintainea was in excess of
“the waxirum of $45 mill.on nec with the cowpany (7.0.J.)

beiny responsibie for the transfer costs®., Kut such a

T BT

(P

e
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cecatention lLas notiing to recommend it. I say sc for two

i

reasons. Firstly, the authorrty to purchase land sets no price
beyord which the company may not buy. sSecondly, noc particular
contractual formula has been imposed upon the company. The
langucge complained of is certainly not a device to impose upon
the company the obligation of paying the vendor his full price
andg then paying tlie Transfer Tax on that sum.

“he othexr ground on which it was claimea that T.0.J.
hia acced ultra vires was set out at parayraph 23 of the affi-
aavit of Hwuctor Bernarxd in which the case for the plaintiffs
appear. The paragraph reads:

"SHAT the instrument of transfer of

ihe said properties which purported

to be signed unuexz the Common seal

cf the Thirteenth Defendant by one

of its Directors was not signed by

any Director of the Thartcenth Lefen-

dant. It was signed by the President

cf tuae Thirteenth Defencant,

k.C. Chantrelie, who knowingly and

felcely represented himself to be

. siyning as a Director. That no seal

wis arfixed.”
This was a most unfortunate allegation for which
Mr. MHanderson~-dcnes apolcgized to tine Court blaming the alie~-
yation against kir. Chantrelle on an oversight. Indeed, the
matters abcut which complaint was made in the citea paragraph
were of Mr. khanderscn-junes' own maiking. <“he transfer occupies
tWwo pages but only the first page thereof was cexhibited to the
aforesaid affidavit of Hector pernaid. o signature appears
on Lhis page ana cccordingly tie seal of the company was not
affixed vo tiet page. But when ¥Willian Bertiam, Secretary to
the company, exhiibited the complete trznsfer the signature of
Mr, Chantrelle as director and the seal 0i the cowmpany are
there to ke seen. 4“he election of kr., B, Chantrelle as a
director 1is contained in the finutes of the First Annual
General keeting of T.U.J. hela in Kingston on Mevenber 30, 1583,

anu there should have been no Gifficulry in asceriaining who

NORMAN MANLEY LAW SCHOOL LIBRARY
CCUNCIL OF LEGAL EDUCATION -

1CNA, KINGSTON, 7. JAMAICA
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were the airectors of 4.0.J. atc the material time. Conclu-
sively., cierefore, the issue of the ultre vires action by
T.G.J. is effectively laid to rest.

in the same resting place alsc are to be found the
charges acainst certain of the defendants/respondents against
whor the order of EcGwerds, J. cannct possilbly have any effect.
Theiy respective alttorneys polinted our the basegs on whach
these defendants/regpendents ere in no way involved.

lirs. Hudson-Phillips, by referring to the record,

pointed out quite clearly that Mr. Wentwerich Charles {(fifth

defendant/sespondent) was absent from ch¢ meeting on

24th Cctower, 1988 where the_éecision waz taken to purchase
the parcelis of land and‘he piayea no partc in the implementa-
tion of the agreement{ Clearly, therefore, no lisbitity can
be laid at his éooi undex anyinead of claim,

he récoré alsc reveals that at tile meeting of

T.C.J. on Z24th October, 198d, Mr. Hosford Scoitt (tenth

defendant/respondent} indicatea his intention not to seek
re-election and so was not ré-elected at Lhe Annual General
Meeting of T.0.J. held on 30th Novembe:, 19%38. Accordingly,
he was not a diregtor of T.U.j. at the time of the imple-
mentation of the decision to purciase. iio liabilitykgan
attach o uim.

On behalf of PDavid mais {thoe eichith defendant/

responasni) riss faren Ropertson relied on the record to show
tnat he was absent Ifrom the meeting held on zath October, 15388,
at which the decision to purchase the itwe sites was taken énd
no vasis for aitaching liability to him cxists.

Ls regards the remaining defendants/responaents,
Coplous sSubmies:ons were made andé several authorities cited
on the remaining issue of fraud. But before adverting to

these submissions and gauthorities, it 1s necessary Lo

F
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identify the fraud in contemplatcion and to determine whether
the pleaainy conforms with the ruquirements., The endorscient
vf the writ alleginyg frauc is in tho following terms:

“The Plaintiff's claii ie for
damages for fraud, misrepresentc-
ation and ox negliyence asisiing
in relution to the issuing by
the Defendants in cu about
veptember, 1%88 of a prespectus
for tae sale of certain shaies
in Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited aud €lso in relation to
the purchase in 1984 by that
company of certain prope:tics.
The plaintiifs also claim
dumeges on the ground that in
additicu to being fraudulent
- th2 purchase of the said

properties was ultra vires the
Memorandum of Association of
telecommunications of JauaicCs
Limited. ‘The First Defendant
is suad under the Crown Pro-
ceeuings Act on behalf of the
Accountant-General, a Corps-
waticn Uole pursuant tc the
Crown Propercy (Voestcing) act,
which s and vas at all mace-~
rigl times a ma‘jecr sharchclder

. in Telecommuhications of Jamaica
Limited und was the cwner of
the shares in thatr company which
vere offcered for sale to Lhe
public in the said prospeccus.”

if the claim of fraud was to 4o forward, what should

follow is that in the Statement of Claim the charge of fraud
shculda "be pleaded with the utmost particularlty" {(Or: 18/8/8).
Section 170{.) of the Judicature (Civili Proceacure Coce) Law
ieguires:

“in all cases in which a party

Pleading relies on any niziepre-

sentation, fraud ... particulars

siiall be statea in the plesuing ..."
whe insistence on the appropriate pleading, when fraud is
allegea, is further enphasized in Grder iv/14713 where it is
statea that:

"e..lt is now provided that the
necessary particularvs of fraud-
ulent intenticn must e contained
n the pleading. 7“he pleader
shoulae zccordingly set out the
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"fucts, matters and circumstances
irelied upon co show that the
peicy chargca had or was actuated
by & fraudulent intention. Fraud-
ulent conduct must be distinctly
alleged and as distincily proved,
and it is noc allowable tou leave
fraucd to be ainferred frcm the
facte (Davy v. Garret: {1lu78)

7 Ch. b. 473 p. 4%} . ,........

‘
-

Tecetseccsceasravumcoscacesanano
Gencral allegevions, however
scrong may e the words in which
they are statea, are insufficient
co ancount to an averment of fraud
of which any Court oucht to take
ncetice., {Wallingfora v. mutual
Society {(i¥80) 5 App. cas. b&5

p. {’97j AL B AL I A I R R R R I I N

-~ Thie acts zllegad to ke fraudulent
must be set out; and chen it nmust
be stated that these acts were
done fraudulently, ctherwise no
evidence in supporit of them will
be received :Re Rica Golid Washing
Co. (187G) 11 Ch. De 39 veveces”

i~

t follows ifrom the above-mentioned provisions

regarding the pleading of fraud that when Edwazds, J. looked

4

at the pleagings if he cid not find compliance with these
requiremnents he should have advised himself that there ware
no allegatious of traud of which he cucht to take notice.,
5o the guestion naturally arises "What are the allegations of
fraud on winich he made the order that the plaintiffs avre
entitled to maintain ¢ derivative action on behalf of the
thirteenth defendant? It wouldé rather appezar that the plain-
tiffs had resiled from the charge of fravd mentioned in the
endcrsentent Lo the Writ because in noneof the twenty—-£four
paragraphs in the ttatement of (Claim can there be found even
a generazl allegation of fraud let alone any charge of fraud
Pleaded with the utmest particularity. in his judgment, the
learned budge said:

“There is a veiled suggesiion

of fraud on the minority. It

=8 not established chat those

in control &4id not do anytiing

&3 they were not told of the
accion.”




£
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Then later he said:

ihe guestion is whether the plain-
tiris are entitled to continue
ithis matter. 1 come to the con-
clusicn with a great deal of
difficulty, that at this stage,;
2 guestion of fraud is alleged by
the plzintiffs. They should be
entitled to maintain a derivative
action for the benefit of the
thirteenth defendant. All we have
here are allegations. ¥ rhink
that it would come within the
Xception to the rule in Foss v.
Earbottle. The guestion of fraud,
not ultra vires, should be dealt
with properly at a trial. This i
matter should procsed to trial so ' ' |
that the matter can be resolved. é
Fraud is alleged, all directors ;
concerneda are involved as parties
to the action."

i
v

As I have shiown earlier, this omnibus finding concerning the

v
{

directors would result in directors who haa nothing whatsoever to |

do with the transactions being unnecessarily invelved in a lengthy
litigation. Further, those directors wle are involved would i ?
not be able to meet the allegé£icns of fraud@ because of the
non-cempliziice with the reguirements for pleading fraud.
Althiecugh no Court éﬁght to take notice of general
allegyations of fraud we did, ﬁlth counsel, examine the voiu- '
mincus affidavit evidence filed @5 counsel spared ne effort in
the endeavour to show that rhe oruer made by kdwardas, J. was

done in error and we came awiy empty-hanued. Ko fraud was dis~

R —

closec. For instance, in contending that the sirccters acted

ar— -

fraudulently it nust be shown that they, as directors, stocd to

gain some benefit. Iu Prudential v, Hewman industries (Ho. 2)

(1960) 2 K11 E.R. 841 at paye BY9A-5, the principle is
stated chus:
“Thus the asuthorities show that ¢ho
exception applies not only where
the allegavion is thai divectors
who control o coupany have impro-
perly appropriated to themselves 3
money, properiy or aavantages which ‘ v
belony to the cvompany or, in breach



-..4 5...':

"of their duty to the company, have
diverced business to themselves
which ought to have been given to ;
the compiny, but more generally o
where it is alleged that directors :
thouch acting in tnc belie# that
they were doing nothing wrong® (per
Lord Lindiey MR in Alexander v.
Automatic Telephone Co. FLE0G:

2 Ch 56 at %) are gurliy of 4
bresach of duty to the company
(including their duty o c¢uercise
broper care} and as & rosult of
that breach obtain some benefit.”

This element of verefit is a sine Gua non in the proof of fraug

Ll

against dircctors., Eub che would search in vain to find
evidence of such benefit,

The a«ffidavii of AWilliam Wilberforce Beriram,
becretary of Y.G.J., @iscleses that the relevant direciors were
aware of the Guty to €xercise proper care. Accordingly, they -
did not just rush to acguire the disputec properties, Alter-
native sites were considered with certain criteria in mind.
Engineers® reports were obitained in fespect of all zites under

Consideration and it was 2gainst these criteria that the suit~

ability of the Gisputed sites was decided and the others

eliminated. ihwen, too, tha price of $4% million nett was

arrived at after negotiation. The asiiing price was $54 million |

PR e

demmm e

nett, Purther, at tne meetings discussing the choices of sites,

the twelfth defendant/respondent declared his interest, left

the meetiny and teock no part in the ensuing deliberaticns or

decision concerning the sites., iHig action was in accordance

with Article 1¢5 of the Articles of Asscciation of the Tele-

phone Company c¢f Jamaica, ?ﬁ
Accordingly, i have been unakie 1o identify any

tainted conduct Ly the twelftn defendaut/respondent or by any

of the other defendants/respondents wnich ean uce acconmodated {‘

under the rubLric "fraua®

o]

©
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Despite the thoiroughness and eloguence c¢f counsel in
Gefence of their ciients. haviny regaré to the path I have
adopted in éonfronting the issue of fraud, [ do not regard it
as necessary to examine those sublissions which all emphasize
the fact that there is no qguestion of fraud on the part of any
of thc defencdanis/respondents. I must, however, record my .
appreciation of the very valuable countribution of counsel.

(AT
A3

the appeal with costs to the defendants/respondents.

ese, then, are my reasons fox ccncurring in allowing



GORDON, JA (AG.)

The Plaintiffs Respondents who are shareholders of
the thirteenth defendant company Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited (T.QJ), filed suit against the defendants claiming
damages for fraud, misrepresentation and/or negligence. The
plaintiffs also claimed that acts done by the defendants were
ultra vires and fraudulent and that the defendants were in
control of the company. On this basis the plaintiffs sought
to maintain a derivative action fér the benefit of the

thirteenth defendant.

By summons dated the 21st aAugust, 1990 the thirteenth

defendant sought:

(i) "An order determining as a
preliminary issue in this acticn
the question whether the Plaintiifs
are entitled to maintain in this
suit a derivative action for the
benefit of the 13th defendant.

(ii) Alternatively, likerty to file a
defence to the thirteenth
Defendant if necessary.”

At the hearing of the summons the Plaintiff/Respondent raised

in limine the following issues:

{a} that the summons was not properly

constituted. :
v+b) that the summons was out of time
as the pleadings had been closed,
sunmmens for Directions fixed for
hearing and therefore the applica-
tion was an abuse of the process
of the court and
(c) that the deponents to affidavits
filed on behalf of the thirteenth
defendant should be ordered to
attend for cross-examination.
In an oral judgment delivered on 9th October, 1590
and reduced to writing by the parties hereto, Edwards J.
ruled that the plaintiffs were entitled to maintain a
derivative action and that it was inappropriate at that stage
to order cross-examination. The thirteenth defendant now

appealed this order maintaining that arguments were addressed

to the learned trial judge on the issues raised in limine by
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the Plaintiffs/Bespondents and he failed to rule on (a) and
(b} (supra) and he ruled on the substantive summons of the
thirteenth defendant without the bencfit of argument and acted
in error in dismissing the thirteenth defendant's summons.

As the Respondents still have their personal action
to be tried, I will deal only with so much of the facts as I
deem nacessary for tﬁe purpose of the decision arrived at.

The thirteenth defendani is a company duly incorporated
on iSth May 1987 with registered offices at 47 Half Way Tree
Road in St. hndrew. The purpose for the formation of the
company is stated in the affidavit of William Bertram, the
‘senior Vice President, finance and Secretary of the thirteenth
cdefendanc. This affidavit was_éworn in suppoxt of the summons

filed by the thirteenth defendan: dated 2lst August, 1996 and

the deponent therein stated:

"3. The Thirteenth Defendant was
formed for the purposc of
implementing a joint venture
between the Government of Jamaica
and the Second Defendant, Cable
and Wireless (Viest Indies) Limited,
with the objective of acquiring
ownership of Jamaica International
Telecommunications Limited (here-
inafter called "Jarintel'} andé the
Jamaica Telephone Ccmpany Limited
{liereinafter called "JTC¥) in order
to centralise the business of
telecommunications in Jamaica.
4. In furtherance of the jcini venture
the Government of Jamaica transferred
its entire shareholding in JTC to the
Thirteenth Defendant in return for
shares in the Thirteenth Defendant
and subseguently, the Thirteenth
afendant acquired the remazining
shaxes in JTC in exchange for shares
in the Thirteenth Defendant. The
Second Defencant and the Government
of Jamaica also transferred all their
shares in Jamigtel to ihe Thirteenth
Defendant in return for shares in
the Thirteenth Defendant, thereby
rendering Jamintel and JTC wholly
cwned subsidiaries of the Thirteenth
Cefendant.
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5. The Thirteenth Defendant was
formed as a private Company with
an authorised share capital cf One
Thousand Million Jamaican Dollars
($1,000,600,00C) and of its issued
share capital 53.1 per cent of the
shares were owned by the Government
of Jamaica, and 3% per cent of the
shares were owned by the Second
Defendant from 2nd March 1988. 1In
June 198%. the Second Defendant
acquired a further 23 per cent of
issued shares of the Thirteenth
Defendant to bring its total share-
holding tc 59 per cent, which now
makes the Second Defendant the
owner c¢f the majority of the issued
sharec of the Thirteenth Defendant.

6. On the Ist July 1907, the Articles
of Association of the Thirteenth

. Defendant were duly amended tc

effectually conve:rt the Thirteenth : .
Defendant from a private compzny to
a public company.

The affidavit of Mr. Bertram states that prior to the
formaiion of the thirteenth defendanit and as part of negotiations
between the Government of Jamaica and the second defendant,
the JTC requested the parent company cf the second defendant
in the U.X, Cable and VWireless PLC of the U.K of Great Britain
to conduct a survey of the JTC's operaticns to assess the needs
and maie recommendations. Cable and Vireless PLC a company
of undoubted expertise and repute sent o team to Jamaica to
Carry out a survey and this team's report was submitted to the
Government in due course. The team recommended improvements
that would result in the increase in JTC's customers from the
then existing £¢,0600 to approximately 250,000 with this being
doubled cvery ten years. The improvement wculd render the
opexations of JTC viable and the service it offered comparable
with that in other countries. The team recommended the citing
of telephone service centres cn land of 12 to 20 acres. The
circumstances of the acquisition of sites necessary to implement
this recommendation is the basis of the complaint of the
plaintiffs/respondents in this suit.

On oxr about 2nd September, 1955 the thirteenth defendant

issued a prospectus dated 3lst August, 1535 offering to the
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public 105,400,060 shares inlthe thirteenth defendant
company at a price of $0.6% per share. At the time of this
offer the first defendant owned (on behalf of the Government
of Jamaica} 53.1 per cent and the second defendant 3% per cent
of the issued shares of the thirteenth defencant. The
application list for this public offer of shares opened on the
Z2lst September, 1948 and closed on the 23th September, 1988;
Shortly after the allotment of shares they were listed on the
Jamaica stock Exchanye. &Rt the time of offer, the thirteenth
defendant was actively contemplating the acguisition of two
sites one at Washington Boulevard and the other at Hewport
West in St. Andrew. Both sites "came closest to meeting the
ideal requirements for the coﬁpany's concept of ctelephone
service centres.” The management team of the JTC had entered
into discussions with the owners of the sites,; Commercial
Development Limited which was wholly owned by industrial
Commercial Development Limited (ICD), a public company whose
shares a;e listed on the Jamaica Stock Exchange, for the
puirchase of the sites. The owners asked $54 #Million net of
all legal and transfer costs. The team offered $43.9 Million
net. The negotiations continued and the Board of the J'TIC
was asked to approve of the purchase of the two properties at
a figure not exceeding $46 Million net with the buyer‘being
responsible for all transfer costs. On Z4th Octobexr,; 1686
about 10:30 a.m the Directors’of JTC considered the submissions
of the negotiating team and unanimously approved the purchase
of the sites at Hewport West and Washington Boulevard for
a maxinum net price of $46 Million. at about 2:0C p.m the
same day the EBoard of Directoxs of the thirteenth defendant
met and ratified the decision taken by the Board of Directors
of JTC to purchase the two sites.

The Plaintiffs alleged that the sites were purchased

at & gross over-value and that this was probably influenced
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by the twelith defendant, Mr. Mayer Matalon, the Chairman

of the Beoard of Directors of JTC and T0u who was also a share-
holder and director of the vendor Development Properties
Limited,; and Industrial Commercial Development.

The Newport West property comprised some 16 acres and
the asking price was $35.00 per sguare foct, that is, approxi-
mately $24.5 Million net. The site at Washington Boulevard
was six acres, the asking price was {48 pew sqguare foot or
approximately $12.5 Killion net. This was the position when
consideration of the acguision of the sites was in progress
in August 1988. In a letter to the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of J7TC dated October 11, 1988; Hr. Neville Saddler,
senior Director, pointed out that the asking price of §$12.5
Million net for the Washington Boulevard site referred to the
land only "and that the cost of building (thereon) 74,000
square feet would be in the order of $10.0 Killion. This would
give a composite asking price of the order of $96.0C per sguare
foot (land and builaing).® It is accepted that there was a
substantial building on the Washington Boulevard site. The
total asking price for the two sites was thus $24.5 plus:
$22.5 . = £47 Million net.

In accordance with the accepted practices, valuations
were had from three independent and qualified valuators. They

gave these valuations:

-

Hewport Washington

Valuator Date West Boulevard Total
Langford & Brown 7. $.88  24m 25nm 49m
C.D Alexander & Co. <21. 5.88 16G.5m 27.1m 37.5m
Allison Pitter & Ca 14.10.88 17.4m i4.0m 3l.4nm

It was against this background that the negotiations for the
acquisition of the sites were conducted and concluded in
December 1988 for a price of $4% Million net.

The eriginal writ dated 29th March, 1289 had but twelve

defendants the thirtgenth defendant was added to the writ
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approximately one Year later on the 25¢h March, 19%0. The parti-
gularsjg:ounding the derivative action are conta%ped in paragraphs
17 -~ 23 of the amended statement of claim. Paragraphs 17 ang

18 claim that the defendants cne to twelve caused the thirteenth
defendant /appellant to Purchase the sites for $49,169,200

which was §rossly in excess of the true market value. The other

bParagraphs aver:

"19. The First and Second Defendants,
the Director Defendants andg the
Twelfth Defendant: all fully well
knew that the land was not worth
or valued at the price paid for
it or did not honestly believe

- that it was or acted in reckless
disregard of whether it was or
Was not and conspired together
to have the company purchase the
said land at ga grossiy inflated
price as a consequence whereof
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited has suffered considerable
loss ang damage.

PARTICUI AR S

Difference between contract
Price and market Price = $30,006,000.00 (Estimated)

Purchaser's costs of
transfer = 3,0060,000.G60 (Estimated]

Purchasers Attorney's
fees 1,006,0006.00 (Estimated)

$34,000,000.¢0

"20. The purchase of the Properties
and at the Price aforesaid is
ultra vires the objects of the
Memorandum of Association of
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited particularly insofar as
it is expressly declared therein
that the company shall carry on
its business in accordance with
commercial principles which were
manifestly absent in the said
purchase and also insofar as the
Properiies were not necessary
for, cannot pe conveniently used
with and cannot enhance the value
of any other property of the
company.,
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"21. The aforesaid conduct of the
First and Second Defendants,
of the Director Defendants and =. _
the iwelfth Defendant completely
disregarded the interest of
Telecommunications of Jamaica
Limited and of the Plaintiffs
and constituted oppressive and
unconscionable conduct towards
them.

Y22. Further and/or in the alternative
the said loss and damage arising
from the purchase of the proper- .
ties at a grossly inflated price
was caused by the negligence of
the Defendant Directors and of
the Twelfth Defendant.

PARTICULARS

(i} Failing to pay a reasonable
price or to forego the
purchase and look for more
reasonably priced land;

(ii) Failing to obtain any or an
adequate number of professional
valuations of the properties:

(iii) Alternatively, disregarding or
- failing to rely on or cn the
majority of the professional
valuations obtained;

(iv) Relying on their own uninformed
valuations of the properties or
on their own assumptions as to
the proper price to be paid for
it. )

"23. The First and Second Defendants
by- their absolute control over
the votes of Telccommunications
of Jamaica Limited and through
the Defendant Director and the
Twelfth Defendant who are appointed
by them completely overwhelm the
Plaintiffs and have refused and/or
threatern to refuse to pursue this
action against themselves arnd
their Directors in that company's
name."

The Summons of the thirteenth defendant appellant
seexing to have the court determine as a preliminary issue
the right of the plaintiff to maintain the derivative action

is grounded in Supreme Court Practice {White Book) 1985 0.15/12/5:
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Where plaintiffs sue as representative
plaintiffs in a minority shareholders
or derivative action, the court ought
to determine, as a preliminary issue,
whether they are entitled so to sue

and whether the company was in fact
under the control of those alleged to
have practised a fraud on it before

the court proceedec to hear the main
Gerivative action itself."

This order follows Frudential Assurance Co. Ltd. v. Newman

Industries Ltd. {No. 2} 1%%2 1 ALL ER 354 at 355. There the

Court of Appeal held:

(1) "Although the proper plaintiff in

an action in respect of a wrong

done to a company was prima facie

the company itself, exceplionally .

a minority shareholder could bring

a derivative action where the

wrong cone to the company amounted

to fraud and the wrongdoers were

themselves in control of the company

and thus able to prevent the conpany

from suing; but when such an action

was brought by a minority shareholder

the question whether in fact the

company was controlled by the alleged

wrongdoers should first be determined
. before the derivative action itself

was allowed to proceed."

I accept the authority of Prudential v. Kewman {supra) as

relevant and applicable toc these preceedings. The rationale for
this procedure is that "to allow the derivative action to
proceed without determining the preliminary issue is an approach

which defeats the whole purpose of the gule in Foss v. Harbottle

(1843) z Hare 461 and sanctions the very nischief which the
rule was designed to prevent."” Edyards, J. had therefore to
determine on the summons brought by the thirteenth defendant
appellant whether the derivative actioq should be zllowed to
proceed. He resolved the issues, thus:

"The question is whether the Plaintiffs
are entitled to continue this matter.

1 come to the conclusion with a great

deal of difficulty, that at this stage,

a guestion of fraud is alleged by the
Plaintiffs. They should be entiiled

to maintain a derivative acition for

the benefit of the Thirteenth Defendant.



All we have here are allegacions.

1 *hinx that it would come within
ithe exception to the rule in FOSS
V. HARBOTTLE. The question of
fraud not ultra vires should be
Gealt with properly at a trial.
This matter should Proceed to trial
so that the matter can be resolved,
Fraud is alleged, all directors con-
cerned are involved as parties to
the action."

Barlier in his judgment he had said:

I spent some time agonising and
found first that the purchase of the
land was not ultra vires ....“
The learned judge here disposed of the claim that the
acts done were ultra vires the company. He found that they

were intra vires ang accordingly the case did not fall within

this exception to the rule in Foss v. Harboctle.

For the pPlaintiffs/respondents to succeed there must
be evidence which on the balance of prokabilities establishes
that this case falls within the exceptions to the rule in Foss
v. Harbottle. The evidence must show that fraud has been com-

-

mitted, and that the fraudsters are in control of the company

niaking the company impotent to act in its own protection and
therefore the minority needed the protection of the court to

50 act on behalf of the company. Basic tc fraud must be
evidence that there has beern gain by those in control, the
direct result of the fraudulent act complained of. On the
evidence the chairman of JTC Limited, Mr. Matalon, attended the
meeting of *+hat cohipany on 24th Octoger: 18585,

When the subject of the acquisition of the lands came
to be considered and deciszion taken he¢ declared his interest,
withdrew from the meeting and took no part in the discussion
and decision, Similarly at the meeting of the Board of
Directors of the thirteenth defendant which ratified the
decision to acguire the lands, he declared his interest, with-
drew from the mecting and had nothing to d¢o with the deliberations,

- - -
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.This:action -on his part-was consonant with" ethics and with the
Articles of Association and cannot be faulted.
The contract of séle was entered into by two competent
and capable parties very experienced in the commercial field.

The terms of the agreement do not viclate the practice in that

field. The court will not interfere in the internal management

of a company when the persons appointed to govern the affairs of
the company act within the bounds of propriety. The Board of

Directors by Article 81 is the body charged with the management

of the Company.

There was before the court below no prima facie evidence
of fraud to support a derivative action and Déwards, J. fell /]
in error when he accepted "a veiled suggestion of fraug " based on

P
allegations of fraud unsupported by evidence, as sufficient to v/

rule that the matter should proceed to trial.

Overriding these considerations there is a basic defect

-

in the pleadings. Section 170 (1) of the Civil Procedure Code

Law reduires:

"In all cases in which the party pleading
relies on any misrepresentation, fraud
breach of trust, wilful default or undue
influence, and in all other cases in
which particulars may be necessary

beyond such as are exemplified in the
Forms aforesaid, particulars (with dates
and items if necessary) shall be stated
in the pleading.”®

The pleadings fail to comply with the reguirements of
this section so on the threshold the plaintiffs action in this
respect is barred.

The affidavit evidence which was before Edwards, J. was
also before us and was the basis of detailed submissions and
references. Ve were invited to invcke the power contained in
fule 18 {3) of the Rules of the Court of Appeal in the follow-

ing words:
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"The court shall have power to draw
inferences of fact and to give any
judgment and make any order which
cught to have been given or made,
and to make such further or other
order as the case may require.”

i consider the able submissions of Counsel for the
thirteenth Ihfendant/Appellant and the Defendant/kespondents
very helpful. The Justice of.the case redquired that this.couét
should invoke the power conferred by Section 1& (3) of the Court /
of Appeal Rules. I concurred in the Judgment of the court setting

&side the judgment of Edwards, J.

Both Carey and Wright JJ.a., have dealt with the question

of bias which was raised. My brief commeﬁt on the matter does
not reflect aﬁy feeling that the t}eatment by my brothers is not
adegquate. Indeed L do endorse the manner in which they have ?
dealt with it, However, 1 regard the issue ag being so important |
that I wish to aag my voice to theirs.

it is patent that the ground on which bias is sought

to be attributed to the Court is certainly not in keeping with

the economic realities of the times which'do not preclude a
judge from investing on the Stock Excharge, unless as & corollary
to being a judge, one must necessarily be excluded from the
economic development of his country, 7z endorse the observations;@

of Lord Cranworth L.C in ihe exchange between Bar and Bench in

London and North Western Railway Compeny vs. Lindsay (1858) 3

McQueens' Appeals 99 at p.114:

"I must szy that in the present state
of our social relations, when alnost
everybody has shares in some or other
cf these companies, to suppose that
that disqualifies them from discharg-
ing 3udicial functions in cases in
which those companies are concerned
is a very dangerous doctrine."

¢ [BRARY
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